
1 
 

Port of Astoria 

West Basin Marina Dredging ITB 

Addendum #1 – Pre-bid Questions and Responses 

 

Pre-bid meeting questions and responses: 

 

1. What are the contaminants in DMMU 5? 

 

The permit is written such that final design elevations will prevent movement of 

contaminants (mercury) identified in DMMU 5.  The Oregon Department of 

Environmental Quality issued a Water Quality Certification letter on November 14, 2017 

which is included in current dredging permit.  Section 16b of the 401 WQC General 

Requirements states that the Port must: 

 

“…submit a mercury sampling plan to PSET and 401 for the post-dredge surface 

in DMMU 5 in case unauthorized dredging below -6 ft MLLW occurs in DMMU 

5…” 

   

2. When will the Port know if the US Army Corps of Engineers will allow the disposal site to 

be moved to the south side of the channel?  

 

Port staff requested relocation of the disposal site on September 12, 2019.  Per an e-

mail on September 26th, USACE is awaiting an answer from the hydraulic engineer 

assigned to the project.  The relocation has not yet been granted but the indication from 

USACE’s Waterways Maintenance Technical Manager is that USACE should be able to 

provide the Port with an alternate location on the south side of the channel.   

 

3. Will the Port be willing to work with the contractor if they run into unseen obstacles 

when dredging? 

 

Yes.  The Port’s willingness to work with the dredging contractor encountering 

unforeseen conditions and/or debris will be captured within the Contract language.   

 

4. Will the Port update the bid sheet to accept an RFP bid? 

 

Yes.  The Port will provide several options within an updated bid sheet which will be 

provided in Addendum #2. 
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5. Does the dredging need to be done over three years, or can the dredging be completed in 

1 or 2 years? 

 

Dredging can take place over one, two or three years.  As discussed in the pre-bid 

meeting, the Port’s ITB was drafted due to budgetary constraints.  This year’s budget 

does not allow the Port to complete all of the West Basin Marina dredging in FY 2019-

20, so the ITB was drafted to allow the project to be completed over three fiscal years 

from FY 2019-20 through FY 2021-22.   

 

A proposal which minimizes mobilization costs, however, will be given appropriate 

consideration.  The bid sheet will be revised and issued as Addendum #2 to the Port’s 

West Basin Marina Dredging ITB.  The revised bid sheet will require contactors to 

provide one, two and three-year bids to complete project work.  The difference in 

mobilization costs between single-year and multiple-year proposals will be a significant 

factor in determining how the Port will proceed with awarding and budgeting the 

project.  For example, a proposal that completes dredging within one fiscal year will 

need to be pushed to either FY 2020-21 or FY 2021-22 to accommodate the total project 

cost.   

   

6.  Will a contractor be given special consideration if it is able to complete the dredging in 

one year and bill for services over multiple years? 

No.  The Port cannot give special consideration to contractors that are able to offer 

what is essentially project financing.  Oregon law states that the Port cannot incur 

contractual obligations in the present that are “owed” from future budgets because the 

availability of funds in a future budget is not guaranteed.  

 

7. When was the West Basin Marina last dredged? 

 

DMMU’s 3, 4 and 5 were last completely dredged in 1993.  Problem areas along docks B, 

C and D (Areas 4, 5 and 6 of the ITB) were bucket dredged circa 2001.  DMMUs 1 and 2 

were last dredged between November 2017 and February 2018.   

 

8. Was the marina dredged to design depth the last time it was dredged? 

 

During the 2017-18 work window, DMMUs 1 and 2 were not dredged to design depths. 

During the 1993-94 work window, DMMUs 3, 4 and 5 were dredged to depths indicated 

in lead-line bathymetric survey dated September 26, 1994 and attached as Exhibit A.  In 

the 2001-02 work window, specific sections of Areas 3, 4 and 5 were bucket dredged to 

depths indicated in bathymetric survey dated October 4, 2002 and attached as Exhibit B.     
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9. Was there any known debris when you last dredged? 

 

When DMMUs 1 and 2 were dredged between November 2017 and February 2018, the 

contractor experienced very little debris that included a few remnants of an old rock 

wall (roughly 7-12 inches in diameter) and several large oyster shells. 

 

10. Is the Port planning on dredging to designed depths or is the Port planning to leave 

certain areas shallower than design depths to cover a greater dredge area? 

 

The Port’s plan is to dredge to design depths.  Depending on total project volumes 

determined by pre-dredge bathymetry and subsequent estimated total project costs, 

the Port may adjust project depths. 

 

11. Who will move the vessels and is there a schedule? 

 

Port staff will be responsible for all vessel movements.  Vessel moves will be scheduled 

by Port staff with all vessel owners and will be based on a two-week look ahead 

schedule provided by Contractor.   

 

12. What are the hours of operation for dredging? 

 

Dredging hours (actual pump time) will be limited by tides and conditions of the Port’s 

existing dredging permit.  Contractor may perform support activities outside of these 

hours but may only dispose of sediments during outgoing tides. 

  

13. Is the fuel dock open year around? 

 

Yes.  The fuel dock is open 361 days per year from 08:30 to 16:30 with a one-hour break 

between noon 12:00 and 13:00.  The fuel dock is closed on Thanksgiving, Christmas Eve, 

Christmas and New Year’s Day. 

 

14. Do you want to dredge between each slip and under the docks? 

 

Yes.  In order to achieve design depths, dredging will need to be performed in each slip 

and under the docks.   
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15. Can you provide a list of attendees to the pre-dredge meeting? 

Name 
 

Company 

Robert Lyons Clean Harbors 

Greg Anderes Pacific Pile & Marine 

Randy Steed Ross Island Sand & Gravel 

Greg Morrill Bergerson Construction 

Chad Tennyson Portable Hydraulic Dredging 
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Exhibit A – September 26, 1994 Survey
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Exhibit B – October 24, 2002 Survey 

 


